


















 
 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA—NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  EDMUND G. BROWN JR., GOVERNOR 

CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION 
NORTH CENTRAL COAST DISTRICT OFFICE 
45 FREMONT STREET, SUITE 2000 
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 
PHONE: (415) 904-5260 
FAX: (415) 904-5400 
WEB: WWW.COASTAL.CA.GOV 
  

F8a 
Prepared July 14, 2016 for July 15, 2016 Hearing 

To: Commissioners and Interested Persons 

From: Nancy Cave, North Central Coast District Manager 
Stephanie Rexing, North Central Coast District Supervisor 

Subject: STAFF REPORT ADDENDUM for F8a 
City of Half Moon Bay Amendment Number LCP-2-HMB-14-0612-1 (Habitat 
Map Revisions) 

The purpose of this staff report addendum is to make modifications to the initial staff 
recommendation (dated June 29, 2016) in response to ongoing discussions between City and 
Commission staffs attempting to find agreement on the proposed amendment language related to 
habitat mapping. After initial publication of the staff recommendation, the City provided 
Commission staff with a 37-page letter dated July 8, 2016. Staff does not agree with the 
characterizations in that letter, but in lieu of spending significant staff time to address each of the 
points raised, instead further engaged the City in problem solving. That effort resulted in the 
compromise agreement herein. Staff and the City are now in agreement on the revised LCP 
amendment if modified as discussed below. Any questions or concerns regarding the City’s July 
8, 2016 letter can be addressed at the public hearing. 
 
Commission staff is slightly modifying the staff recommendation to accommodate the City’s 
suggestion that the area in dispute be further studied as a means of providing additional data that 
can be used to help make appropriate determinations regarding the presence or absence of ESHA 
and sensitive species habitats. The changes make clear that staff’s current assessment based on 
the data available today is that the area should be considered habitat for purposes of potential 
future planning and development, but that future and more in-depth habitat analysis could dictate 
otherwise. The City commits to performing a detailed study that will be available for public and 
peer review, and to use that study to form the basis of a future LCP map update. In the interim, 
the LCP habitat maps would continue to perform their function in a planning and development 
review sense, including as a means to provide one indicator as to when additional site specific 
habitat assessment may be necessary. For the area that the City would further study moving 
forward, the intent of the staff recommendation changes would be that this area would continue 
to be evaluated at the time of any future development proposal and, if determined to be sensitive 
species habitat and ESHA at that time, then the applicable ESHA and related habitat policies 
would apply to that development. If not, then the policies would not apply to the area deemed not 
to be ESHA and habitat.  
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Thus, the staff recommendation dated June 29, 2016 is modified as follows to replace the 
Suggested Modification 1 text on staff report page 6 with the following:  
 
1. Planning Note. Amend the LUP’s “Habitat Areas and Water Resources Overlay Map” 

and the IP’s “Coastal Resource Areas Map” to include the following planning note: 

For the 9.8 acre parcel the following shall apply. The City intends to perform a 
biological assessment of the parcel, providing for both peer and public review through a 
45-day comment period, as a means of providing additional data regarding the presence 
or absence of ESHA and sensitive species habitats. The completed study shall form the 
basis for an update to these maps to reflect the results of that completed study. Unless 
and until the LCP is modified to direct otherwise, all applicable LCP ESHA and related 
habitat policies shall apply to any proposed development associated with the parcel. 

 

2. Correct the following typo  in the last paragraph on staff report page 16 as follows: 

“… the Landstra Property (along the norsouthern edge of the Kehoe watercourse)…” 
 
3.   The City acknowledges that they own the parcel in question, APN 048-270-080.   

 

 

EXHIBITS 
Exhibit 1: Correspondence Received since Staff Recommendation Publication 
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		 	 	 	 	 	 	 REVISED	LETTER	

July	9,	2016	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Item:	F8.a	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Support	Staff	Recommendation																																									 

Chair	Steve	Kinsey	and	Commissioners																																																																																														
California	Coastal	Commission																																																																																																																								
45	Fremont	Street,	Suite	200																																																																																																																									
San	Francisco,	CA	94105	

Re:		Item	F8.a:		City	of	Half	Moon	Bay	LCP-2-HMB-14-0612-1	(Map	Revisions)		

Dear	Chair	Kinsey	and	Commissioners,		

On	behalf	of	Committee	for	Green	Foothills	and	Loma	Prieta	Chapter,	Sierra	Club,	we	write	in	
strong	support	of	the	staff	recommendation	for	approval	of	the	above-referenced	Land	Use	
Plan	Amendment	with	the	suggested	modification	#1	per	staff.	

This	item	was	continued	from	your	July	8,	2015	meeting	in	order	for	Commission	staff	to	work	
with	the	City	to	resolve	issues	related	to	whether	the	City’s	submitted	LUP	Amendment	
conforms	with	Chapter	3	requirements	of	the	Coastal	Act,	particularly	Sections	30107.5	and	
30240.	

As	stated	in	our	letter	of	July	2,	2015,	the	City’s	Habitat	Areas	and	Water	Resources	Overlay	
(HAWRO)	Map	is	over	20	years	old,	and	as	such,	is	extremely	outdated,	and	has	not	been	
periodically	updated,	as	required	by	LUP	Policy	3-21.			

The	City’s	LUP	Amendment,	as	submitted,	is	inadequate	to	fully	protect	the	federally	listed	
and	state	protected	San	Francisco	garter	snake	(SFGS)	and	California	red-legged	frog	(CRLF),	
specifically	as	pertains	to	the	southern	9.8-acre	parcel	(APN	048-279-080)	which	was	
formerly	owned	by	the	Evangelical	Lutheran	Church	of	America,	but	is	now	owned	by	the	City	
of	Half	Moon	Bay.		This	parcel	is	also	referred	to	as	the	“Caltrans	mitigation	project	site”	and	is	
also	protected	as	a	wetland.				

US	Fish	and	Wildlife	Service	(USFWS),	in	2000,	and	again	in	2015	issued	the	following	
opinion:			“The	entirety	of	the	(9.8	acre)	Lutheran	Church	site	constitutes	habitat	for	the	
CRLF	and	SFGS”.			This	opinion	has	been	confirmed	by	several	professional	biologists,	most	
recently	by	Dr.	Mark	Jennings	of	Rana	Resources	in	his	letter	of	June	10,	2016.		
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There	is	no	evidence	from	any	qualified	biologist	that	refutes	the	USFWS	and	other	
professional	biologists	who	have	concurred	that	the	entire	9.8-acre	site	is	habitat	that	
supports	or	contains	the	California	red-legged	frog	and	San	Francisco	garter	snake.			

Suggested	modification	#1	is	necessary	in	order	to	fully	protect	these	habitats	on	the	9.8	acre	
site	as	required	by	Coastal	Act	Section	30240,	which	requires	that	environmentally	sensitive	
habitat	areas	shall	be	protected.		Additionally	protection	of	the	entire	site	is	required	by	Half	
Moon	Bay	LUP	Policy	3.35	which	states:	“Require	preservation	of	all	rare	and	endangered	
species	habitats	using	the	policies	of	this	Plan	and	implementing	ordinances	of	the	City.”	

Our	organizations	are	disappointed	by	the	stance	taken	by	the	City	of	Half	Moon	Bay	opposing	
Commission	staff’s	entirely	reasonable	suggested	modification	#1,	given	the	overwhelming	
evidence	that	the	entire	9.8-acre	site	is	habitat	for	the	CRLF	and	SFGS.		We	are	also	
disappointed	and	frankly	puzzled	by	the	City’s	letter	dated	June	9,	2016,	which	denied	
permission	to	Commission	biologists	Dr.	Garske	and	Dr.	Koteen	to	access	the	site.	We	do	not	
believe	your	Commission	should	sanction	the	fallacious	interpretation	of	the	law	that	was	
used	to	discourage	Commission	staff	biologists	from	pursuing	their	due	diligence.	

This	lack	of	cooperation	on	the	part	of	the	City	is	troubling	in	light	of	the	major		concessions	
by	Commission	staff	to	delete	important	provisions	that	address	protection	of	habitat	that	
were	previously	included	as	suggested	modifications	#s	2,3,	4,	and	5.				

We	therefore	urge	your	Commission	to	approve	the	requested	Map	Revisions	with	the	
inclusion	of	the	entire	9.8-acre	parcel	as	outlined	in	suggested	modification	#1.	

Sincerely,	

	

    

Lennie	Roberts	 	 	 	 Mike	Ferreira																																																							
Legislative	Advocate		 	 	 Chapter	Chair,	Loma	Prieta	Chapter													
Committee	for	Green	Foothills	 	 Sierra	Club	

	
 



 

 

 
July 11, 2016       Item F8.a 
        Support Staff Recommendation 
 
Chair Steve Kinsey and Commissioners  
California Coastal Commission  
45 Fremont Street, Suite 2000  
San Francisco, CA 94105 
 
Re:  Item F8.a: City of Half Moon Bay LCP-2-HMB-14-0612-1 (Map Revisions) 
 
 These comments are submitted on behalf of the Center for Biological Diversity 
(“Center”) on the City of Half Moon Bay's Proposed Amendment on the Local Coastal 
Program's Land Use Plan (“LUP”) Habitat Areas and Water Resources Overlay Map and the 
Implementation Plan (“IP”) Coastal Resource Areas Map. The Center is a national, nonprofit 
conservation organization with more than 1 million members and online activists dedicated to 
the protection of endangered species and wild places. The Center and its members are concerned 
with the conservation of imperiled species, including the California red-legged frog and the San 
Francisco garter snake, and the effective implementation of environmental laws. 
 
 We urge that the Commission to accept all of its staff recommendations on this Item, for 
the approval of the Land Use Plan Amendment with suggested modification #1.  We are in 
agreement with the Coastal Commission's Staff suggested modifications and are supportive of a 
vote to Certify the LUP Amendment, if and only if this approval requires adoption of all of the 
suggested modifications from the Staff Report. The submitted LUP amendment alone is 
insufficient to protect the federally-threatened California red-legged frog and the federally-
endangered San Francisco garter snake.  
 
 Thank you for your consideration of the Center's comments on the City of Half Moon 
Bay's Proposed Map Amendment.  
 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Jennifer Loda  
Amphibian and Reptile Staff Attorney 
Center for Biological Diversity  
1212 Broadway, Suite 800  
Oakland, CA 94612  
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